
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, OCTOBER 30, 2018 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Legal
Representation Agreement with the Law Firm of Helm,
Livesay & Worthington, Ltd. to represent Gila County in the
Continental Energy cases.  (Jeff Dalton)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider allowing the
Sheriff's Office to use the former Gila County Juvenile
Detention Center located at 1425 E. South Street, Globe, to
house the Sheriff's administrative offices and for use as a
storage facility.  (Jacque Sanders)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
18-10-04 accepting a Quit Claim Deed from the Maurine,
Kay, and Lila Family Trust for Pine Creek Drive for roadway
and drainage purposes and establishing Pine Creek Drive as
a Primitive Road. (Steve Sanders)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted
for Request for Proposals No. 080318 - Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services;
award to Pinnacle Prevention in the amount of $160,000;
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract. (Michael O'Driscoll)

 



3. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of the Payson and Globe Regional Constables'
submittal of a FY 2019 Equipment Grant Application to the
Constable's Ethics, Standards, and Training Board and
acceptance of the grant award in the amount of $1,707.39
by authorizing the Chairman's signature on Grant No.
CNA19-202.

 

B.   Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between
Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to
Competency Services for one-year from July 1, 2018, to
June 30, 2019, with the option for three one-year renewals
upon mutual agreement of both counties.

 

C.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
072117-Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County to extend
the contract term with Jani-Serv, Inc. from November 7,
2018, to November 6, 2019, at a cost not to exceed
$106,773.

 

D.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services
Contract No. 090817 between the Superior Court in Gila
County and the Law Offices of Stephen Jones to increase
the contract amount by an additional $7,500 for an
amended contract amount of $48,150 for the remainder of
the contract term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

 

E.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Service
Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises to extend
the term of the contract for one additional year (January 8,
2019, to January 7, 2020) in a not to exceed amount of
$120,000 for the continued provision of jail medical services
for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.



 

F.   Approval to reappoint Cliff Potts and James "Mac" Feezor to
the Board of Directors of The Industrial Development
Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona, for another term of
office retroactive from July 7, 2017, to December 31, 2022
(with a one-time adjustment to the expiration date of the
terms).

 

G.   Approval to rescind the appointments of Don Ascoli and
Terry Otts from the Gila County Board of Adjustment for
the purpose of reducing the size of the Board from 5
members to 3 members to be in compliance with A.R.S. §
11-816; and reappoint Bill Marshall for the term beginning
January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021, and Mickey
Nye for the term beginning January 1, 2019, to December
31, 2022.

 

H.   Approval to reappoint Bill Marshall and Terry Otts as
governing board members of the Gila County Planning and
Zoning Commission for the term beginning January 1,
2019, through December 31, 2022.

 

I.   Approval to reappoint David Lagunas as a governing board
member of the Gila County Personnel Commission for the
term beginning January 1, 2019, through December 31,
2022.

 

J.   Approval to reappoint Charles Thompson as a governing
board member of the Northern Gila County Range
Commission for the term beginning January 1, 2019,
through December 31, 2021.

 

K.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit
Claim Deed for the Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 302-57-037D to the
Town of Star Valley.

 

L.   Approval of the September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018,



L.   Approval of the September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018,
and October 16, 2018, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

5. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-5152   Regular Agenda Item     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief 
Submitted By: Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau

Chief
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2018-2019 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to contract with the Law Firm or Helm, Livesay & Worthington,
Ltd. to represent Gila County in tax court matters known as "Continental
Energy Cases."

Background Information
Taxpayers, which consisted of solar power companies, sought declaratory
judgment that solar energy panels they leased and installed on their
customers' property were not taxable. The Arizona Tax Court, Maricopa
County, entered summary judgment in favor of Department of Revenue in
part and in favor of taxpayers in part. Taxpayers and Department
appealed. The Court of Appeals, Howe, J., affirmed in part, reversed in
part, and remanded in part. 

The Arizona Supreme Court ruled in March 2018, that the Arizona
Department of Revenue is not authorized to value solar panels owned by
Continental Energy and leased to residential and commercial property
owners.  It remanded the cases to the Tax Court for a determination as to
whether A.R.S. Section 42-13054 authorizes county assessors to value
the solar panels and, if so, whether section 42-1105(C)(2) requires a zero
valuation.

Evaluation
The Gila County Board of Supervisors previously authorized the Arizona



The Gila County Board of Supervisors previously authorized the Arizona
Attorney General's Office to represent the County's interests in
the previous litigation. 

Various counties are coordinating their defense efforts regarding
representation at Tax Court.  The Law Firm of Helm, Livesay &
Worthington, Ltd. represents several counties, including Maricopa, Pima,
Pinal, and Coconino Counties.  If Gila County joins the group, it would
pay a prorated portion of the fee based on the amount of full cash value
each county has in personal property values derived from solar energy
equipment.  Gila County's portion would be approximately 5 percent of
the total fee. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Attorney's Office believes that it is wise for the County to
retain a tax expert to represent its interests in the Continental Energy
cases and that it is wise to join other counties and retain the same law
firm.  The portion of legal fees the County would pay will be small.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the Gila
County Board of Supervisors retain the Law Firm of Helm, Livesay &
Worthington, Ltd. to represent Gila County in the Continental Energy
cases.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Legal Representation
Agreement with the Law Firm of Helm, Livesay & Worthington, Ltd. to
represent Gila County in the Continental Energy cases.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
Continental Energy retainer agreement
CONTINENTAL ENERGY exhibit A to legal representation agreement



1 

 

LEGAL REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT 
 

HELM, LIVESAY & WORTHINGTON, LTD. 
 

1619 E. GUADALUPE, SUITE ONE 
 

TEMPE, ARIZONA 85283 
 

480-345-9500 
 
 

 
 This REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement" or “Contract”) is entered into this ____day of ___, 
2018 by and between ________________ County by ___________________the undersigned,_its ________,_herein 
referred to as "Client", who hereby agrees to retain Helm, Livesay & Worthington, Ltd., 1619 East Guadalupe, Suite 
One, Tempe, Arizona, herein referred to as the "Firm". 
 
 1.  JOINT REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT.  By executing this Agreement, you represent that you 
understand the Firm will be representing other counties within Arizona in litigation known as Continental Energy et 
al v. Arizona Department of Revenue, et al; TX2018-000106, under this Agreement or under a document 
substantially the same as this Agreement, on the same terms, i.e. a Joint Representation Agreement.  Each county 
client will be billed separately pursuant to the “Invoices” section below.  Each county’s share of the monthly invoice 
will be calculated on a formula that considers the amount of full cash value for solar energy equipment located in all 
counties executing this or a similar Agreement as 100% and that county’s individual sum of full cash value as its 
percentage of the whole.  Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a breakdown of full cash value of such equipment in each 
named county, using data obtained from the Arizona Department of Revenue.  For example only, if all of the counties 
named as defendants in this case participate in this Agreement, the percentage of legal fees allocated to Maricopa 
County will be 75% of the whole.  If some counties do not participate in this Joint Representation Agreement or a 
similar agreement but Maricopa does participate, its share could increase based on new calculation but pursuant to 
the same formula.  
 
 2.  HOURLY RATES.  It is agreed between the Client and the Firm that legal services actually performed for 
the Client by the Firm shall be charged at the current standard hourly rates set by the Firm for the services of attorneys 
and support personnel.  These rates are subject to change, however Client understands that the rates to be charged as 
of the date of this Agreement are as follows: 
 
   Tax Court      Appellate and Supreme Court 
 
   Roberta Livesay  $275/hour  $300/hour 
   Joshua Carden  $275/hour  $300/hour  
   Paralegal   $105/hour  $105/hour 
 
 
 3.  INVOICES.  Invoices will be submitted to the Client each month for fees incurred the previous month.  Each 
invoice will show all legal work performed on behalf of all Clients as a single total, with each individual Client’s 
share set forth thereon.  All invoices shall be due and payable upon receipt unless otherwise stated.  Outstanding 
balances remaining due thirty (30) days from the date of billing will be subject to a finance charge of 1% per month 
(APR of 12%).  Failure to pay invoices promptly will permit the Firm, after notice to the Client, to terminate its 
representation of the Client.  It is understood that hourly time charges include but are not limited to: court 
appearances, office or telephone conferences, legal research, depositions, review of file materials or of documents 
sent or received, preparation or response to discovery, preparation for trials, hearings and conferences, drafting of 
pleadings or instruments, meetings with clients, and office memoranda or correspondence. 
  
 4.  OUT OF POCKET DISBURSEMENTS.  The Client agrees to assume and pay for all out-of-pocket costs 
incurred in connection with this matter on a prorate basis as set forth in the “Invoices” section hereinabove.  These 
shall include, but not be limited to, filing fees, proprietary electronic database research, service of process costs, 
investigative expenses, expenses of depositions, copy costs and other incidental expenses. 
 
 5.  MISCELLANEOUS.  In some cases, the court awards counsel fees and costs to one party and orders the other 
party to pay the amount awarded.  This is solely in the discretion of the court and cannot be relied upon with any 
certainty.  Also, in some cases if there is a settlement agreed to by both parties to avoid a contested trial, the settlement 
agreement may provide that one of the parties will contribute an agreed amount towards the other party's legal 
expenses.  In the initial stages of a matter it is impossible to predict whether either of the above situations will 
materialize and therefore no representation is made in this agreement that any contribution by the other party will be 
obtained toward the Client's legal expenses.  In the event, however, such contributions are obtained for the benefit 
of the Client, the contribution in question will be credited against the firm's final bill to the Client or refunded to the 
Client, if it exceeds the Client's final bill, and the Client has already paid the charges.  Until such time as fees awarded 
are actually collected, the fees due to the Firm remain the responsibility of the Client, and the Client is responsible 
for payment of the fees pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 
 



2 

 

 6.  DISCHARGE AND WITHDRAWAL.  Client may discharge the Firm and any attorney employed by the 
Firm at any time.  Any attorney employed by the Firm may withdraw with Client's consent of for good cause.  Good 
cause includes Client's breach of this Contract, Client's refusal to cooperate with an attorney employed by the Firm 
or to follow advice from an attorney of the Firm on a material matter or any other fact or circumstance that would 
render the Firm’s continuing representation unlawful or unethical. 
 
 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Contract will take effect when Client has performed the conditions stated in 
paragraph 1, but its effective date will be retroactive to the date any attorney or any other support staff from the Firm 
first provided services to Client.  The date at the beginning of this Contract is for reference only.  Even if this Contract 
does not take effect, Client will be obligated to pay the Firm the reasonable value of any services an attorney for the 
Firm may have performed for Client. 
 
 8. The Firm understands that Client is only able to enter into this Contract upon approval by the Board of 
Supervisors of ___________ County, Arizona.   
 
 9. The Firm is not able to predict the total of legal work necessary to provide Client with excellent legal 
representation.  The Firm will alert Client before the total legal fees incurred reaches Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000) for all clients in the aggregate. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement in Tempe, Arizona, this_____ day of ___,  2018. 
 
 
 
 
CLIENT: ___________ COUNTY, ARIZONA  FIRM: HELM, LIVESAY & WORTHINGTON,  
           LTD. 
By:          by Roberta S. Livesay, Partner 
 
 
        
          ____________________________________ 
 
____________    
Address       
            
 
___       
Phone 
 
 
--------------------------------------------- 
Email 
 
Date:  -------------------------------------_______________________ 



 

CONTINENTAL ENERGY; TX2018-000106 

EXHIBIT A TO LEGAL REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL LEGAL FEES DUE FROM EACH COUNTY 

 

Coconino                5.5% 

Gila                        5% 

Maricopa               75% 

Pima                       5% 

Pinal                       9.5% 

 



   
ARF-5122   Regular Agenda Item     2. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: James Menlove, County Manager 
Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Management Associate
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Future use of County-owned property known as the former Juvenile
Detention Center located at 1425 E South Street, Globe.

Background Information

Effective January 4, 2017, an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
with Pinal County was put in place to allow Gila County Probation
to transport juveniles in need of detention to the Pinal County
Youth Justice Center (Juvenile Detention Center). The need to
detain juveniles in Gila County has declined substantially, a trend
consistent throughout the State of Arizona and nationally. Keeping
the Globe Detention Center open for very few or no juveniles was
not fiscally sustainable in terms of personnel needed 24/7,
minimum staffing standards to keep the facility open, and
infrastructure costs in including much needed improvements. The
Superior Court and all stakeholders involved supported the Pinal
County IGA and the closing of the Gila County Juvenile Detention
Center.

Evaluation
In 2017, the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E
South Street, Globe, closed its doors indefinitely. The building has
remained unused and empty since that time.

Conclusion
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E South
Street, Globe, remains unused and empty since 2017. Timothy
Wright, Presiding Judge of the Gila County Superior Court, supports the
Board of Supervisors' consideration to allow the Sheriff's Office to use the
former Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E South Street, Globe,



to house the Sheriff's administrative offices and for use as a storage
facility.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors allow the Sheriff's Office
to use the former Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E South
Street, Globe, to house the Sheriff's administrative offices and for use as a
storage facility.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider allowing the Sheriff's Office to
use the former Gila County Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E.
South Street, Globe, to house the Sheriff's administrative offices and for
use as a storage facility.  (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments
Detention Center-Google Images
A.R.S. §8-305
A.R.S. §8-306
A.R.S. §48-4005















   
ARF-5139   Regular Agenda Item     2. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Resolution No. 18-10-04 accepting a Quit Claim Deed (QCD) from
the Maurine, Kay, and Lila Family Trust for Pine Creek Drive for roadway
and drainage purposes and establish Pine Creek Drive as a Primitive Road.

Background Information
Pine Creek Drive is in Pine, AZ and connects Hardscrabble Mesa Road
and North Road. Acceptance of this QCD will provide a dedicated public
access for residents of North Road and residents living along Pine Creek
Drive to Hardscrabble Mesa Road and access to SR 87. Acceptance of this
road will also be used to convey drainage from Hardscrabble Mesa Road to
Pine Creek.

Evaluation
Accepting this QCD for roadway and drainage purposes will allow access
to North Road and will provide County staff with a means of conveying
water to Pine Creek. Pine Creek Drive meets the requirements of a
primitive road. It was opened prior to June 13, 1975 and was not
constructed in accordance with county standards.

Conclusion
It is the best interest of the County to accept a QCD for Pine Creek Drive
for roadway and drainage purposes and establish Pine Creek Drive as a
primitive road. Pine Creek Drive is shown on Pine Creek Subdivision No.
1, Plat Map No. 190, Gila County Records and recorded in 1957.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division Director and the County Engineer
recommend the Board's approval and adoption of  Resolution No.
18-10-04 accepting a QCD for Pine Creek Drive and establishing Pine
Creek Drive as a Primitive Road.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
18-10-04 accepting a Quit Claim Deed from the Maurine, Kay, and Lila
Family Trust for Pine Creek Drive for roadway and drainage purposes and
establishing Pine Creek Drive as a Primitive Road. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 18-10-04 with Exhibit B
QCD for Pine Creek Road



When recorded please send to: 
Marian Sheppard 
Clerk of the Board 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-10-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ACCEPTING A QUIT CLAIM DEED FROM MAURINE H. HEISDORFFER, 
KAY D. SHAW, AND LILA F. HARDIN, CO-TRUSTEES OF THE MAURINE, 
KAY, AND LILA FAMILY TRUST, TO QUIT CLAIM PINE CREEK DRIVE 
IN PINE, ARIZONA TO GILA COUNTY FOR ROADWAY AND DRAINAGE 
PURPOSES AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “B”; AND TO BE 
ESTABLISHED AS A PRIMITIVE ROAD AUTHORIZING ITS CHAIRMAN 
TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENT ON BEHALF OF GILA COUNTY.  
 

 
WHEREAS, Maurine H. Heisdorffer, Kay D. Shaw, and Lila F. Hardin have agreed to quit 
claim to Gila County Pine Creek Drive for roadway and drainage purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the public interest will be served by the 
acceptance of the foregoing deed upon the terms and conditions set forth therein; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §28-6706 The Gila County Board of 
Supervisors may designate and sign a public road within its jurisdiction as a primitive road; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Pine Creek Drive was opened prior to June 13, 1975 and was not constructed in 
accordance with county standards; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Pine Creek Drive shall be signed as a Primitive Road in locations along said road to 
adequately warn the public; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the signs shall state Primitive Road, Caution, use at your own risk. This surface is 
not regularly maintained. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the public interest will be served by designating 
Pine Creek Drive as shown on the attached Exhibit “B” the road as a Primitive Road in 
accordance with ARS 28-6706 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that Pine Creek Drive 
as shown on the attached Exhibit “B” be accepted for maintenance into the Gila County 
Primitive Roads System. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby accepts the 
Quit Claim Deed from Maurine H. Heisdorffer, Kay D. Shaw, and Lila F. Hardin, Co-Trustees 
of the Maurine, Kay, and Lila Family Trust, to quit claim Pine Creek Drive in Pine, Arizona to 
Gila County for roadway and drainage purposes and to be established as a primitive road; and 
authorizes its Chairman to execute the document on behalf of Gila County. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 30th day of October 2018, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ ____________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton 
Deputy Gila County Attorney 
Civil Bureau Chief 




 











   
ARF-5145   Regular Agenda Item     2. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2018-2019 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Award Contract No. 080318-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education Support Services to Pinnacle Prevention.

Background Information
Gila County is seeking consultation services to implement collaborative
and comprehensive public health  approaches and public health
marketing supporting our Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education (SnapEd) and the Healthy People Healthy Communities (HPHC)
strategies for Healthy Arizona Policy Initiatives (HAPI).
 
Gila County is seeking to contract with one Arizona-based organization
employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN), Physical Activity
Specialist, and Marketing and Communications Specialist, to implement
policy, system, and environmental food systems, active living, and school
health strategies; to provide nutrition education and physical activity
promotion; design and implement public health marketing and
communications tools including social media promotion; and, support the
development of partnerships and stakeholder engagement with a focus on
low-income individuals and families, and children and youth with special
healthcare needs.  The overall goal of the consultation and marketing
support is to apply comprehensive evidence-based strategies to improve
health outcomes and well being for Gila County residents.
 
Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 080318-Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program Education Support Services was advertised in the



Payson Roundup on September 18, 2018, and September 25, 2018, with
a bid due date of October 3, 2018. The Request for Proposals was also
posted on the Gila County website. Bid responses were opened in a public
setting and evaluated in accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533, Competitive
Sealed Bidding.

In researching consultants to notify of this opportunity to submit
proposals, it was determined by staff (through contact lists at the state
and internet search) that there was only one company in Arizona which
has a Registered Dietitian on staff available for consulting work.

Evaluation
The award of Grant No. ADHS16-106556 for SNAP-Ed and Local
Implementation Services has opened the door for the Gila County Health
Department to implement a policy, systems, and environmental change
focus that makes healthier choices a real, feasible option for every
community member by looking at the laws, rules and environments that
impact our behavior.  Policy, systems and environmental change is a way
of modifying the environment to make healthy choices practical and
available to all community members. By changing laws and shaping
physical landscapes, a big impact can be made with little time and
resources. By changing policies, systems and or environments,
communities can help tackle health issues like obesity, diabetes, cancer
and other chronic diseases.

To fulfill grant requirements, Gila County is seeking to contract with one
Arizona-based organization employing a Registered Dietitian Nutritionist
(RDN), Physical Activity Specialist, and Marketing and Communications
Specialist, to implement policy, system, and environmental food systems,
active living, and school health strategies; to provide nutrition education
and physical activity promotion; design and implement public health
marketing and communications tools including social media promotion;
and, support the development of partnerships and stakeholder
engagement with a focus on low-income individuals and families, and
children and youth with special healthcare needs.  The overall goal of the
consultation and marketing support is to apply comprehensive
evidence-based strategies to improve health outcomes and wellbeing for
Gila County residents.

RFP No. 080318 was emailed to three contractors; advertised in the
Payson Roundup, and posted on the County website.

Gila County received one bid from Pinnacle Prevention. Evaluation of the
proposal was conducted by the Director of Health & Emergency
Management and was found to be in full compliance with the bid



Management and was found to be in full compliance with the bid
guidelines. 

Conclusion
To meet grant requirements, Gila County is seeking to award Contract
No. 080318 for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education
Support Services to contract support services for the administration of
food systems and active living services in alignment with the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education (SNAP-Ed),
Arizona Health Zone, and Policy System and Environmental (PSE)
strategies.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Finance Director and the Health &
Emergency Management Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
award a contract to Pinnacle Prevention for Requests for Proposals No.
080318 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support
Services.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review the bid submitted for Request
for Proposals No. 080318 - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Education Support Services; award to Pinnacle Prevention in the amount
of $160,000; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract. (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Contract No. 080318
Quote Tabulation Form
As Read Bid Results
Pinnacle Peak-Sealed Bid

















































































































      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

 

QUOTE TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

Guild Health Consulting (Jason Gillette) 

jason.gillette@guildhealthconsulting.com                      

480-721-3855

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Pinnacle Prevention 

adrienneudarbe@pinnacleprevention.org                          

480-415-4563

Sub-Grantee for Public Health Support Services

080318 10/03/18 3:00 P.M.

COMMENTS

SC&E, LLC                                         

coghill@sceassociates.com                                         

505-340-6826

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT





 

 

 



      BID

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

Guild Health Consulting

No Bid

GILA COUNTY

SC&E

No Bid  

EXHIBIT "K"

$160,000

BID RESULTS

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

SNAP

080318 10-03-18 3:00 P.M.

COMMENTSBIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

Pinnacle Prevention

 













































































   
ARF-5129   Consent Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk
Department: Constable - Payson Regional
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 8, 2018 thru
June 30, 2018

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Constable's Ethics, Standards, and Training Board FY 2019 Equipment
Grant Application and Award (Contract No. CNA19-202)

Background Information
The Globe Regional Constable's Office hired a Deputy Constable and
currently is in need of a ballistic vest. This will provide officer safety by
providing protection in a hazardous duty situation. The Globe Regional
Constable has a Deputy Constable and a Constable Clerk that currently
do not have uniforms, and the Payson Regional Constable's Office is in
need of replacement uniforms.  In the past, the Payson and Globe
Regional Constable's Offices have submitted grant applications to the
Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board and received grant awards
for the purchase of equipment. 

On September 26, 2018, the Gila County Constable's Offices submitted
an Equipment Grant Application in the amount of $1,707.39 to the
Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board for the purchase of a
ballistic vest and uniform shirts.   The deadline to submit the Grant
Application was prior to a scheduled Board of Supervisors' meeting, so
the Grant Application was submitted without Board approval.  The Gila
County Constables were recently informed by the Constable Ethics,
Standards & Training Board of a grant award for the requested amount
that will be used to purchase a ballistic vest and uniform shirts.

Evaluation



The Board of Supervisors needs to approve the submittal of the
Equipment Grant Application and accept the grant award by authorizing
the Chairman's signature on Grant No. CNA19-202. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Constable's Offices are requesting the Board to approve
the Constables' submittal of the Equipment Grant Application and accept
the grant award by authorizing the Chairman's signature on Contract No.
CNA19-202 in the amount of $1,770.39 from the Constable's Ethics,
Standards and Training Board to purchase a ballistic vest and uniform
shirts.

Recommendation
Constable Tony McDaniel and Constable Ruben Mancha request that the
Board of Supervisors approve the submittal of the Equipment Grant
Application to the Constable's Ethics, Standards and Training Board and
accept the grant award in the amount of $1,707.39 by authorizing the
Chairman's signature on Contract No. CNA19-202.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Payson and Globe Regional Constables' submittal of a FY
2019 Equipment Grant Application to the Constable's Ethics, Standards,
and Training Board and acceptance of the grant award in the amount of
$1,707.39 by authorizing the Chairman's signature on Grant No.
CNA19-202.

Attachments
Grant Contract No. CNA19-202
FY19 Equipment Grant Application











































   
ARF-5147   Consent Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY 2018-2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2018 to June
30, 2019

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai County and Gila
County for Restoration to Competency Services

Background Information
On September 7, 2010, the Gila County Board of Supervisors entered
into an IGA between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to
Competency (RTC) services. The initial term of the IGA was from June 1,
2010, to June 30, 2011, and the IGA allowed for three one-year renewal
periods upon mutual agreement of the Parties.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors also designated Yavapai County
RTC as Gila County's primary competency restoration program effective
June 1, 2010, by Resolution No. 10-09-02.

On July 5, 2011, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through
FY 2011-2012.

On June 26, 2012, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through
FY 2012-2013.

On June 25, 2013, the Board approved the extension of said IGA through
FY 2013-2014.

On June 24, 2014, the Board approved a new IGA which expires on June
30, 2015.



On July 28, 2015, the Board approved a new IGA which expires on June
30, 2018.

Evaluation
Yavapai County currently contracts with Wexford Health Sources for RTC
services within Yavapai County's Adult Juvenile Facilities and has bed
space sufficient to accept Gila County's Rule 11 inmates. 

The cost to Gila County to contract with Yavapai County will remain the
same at $350 for the first day and $250 for each day thereafter.  Some
additional costs may arise for non-formulary mediations, court testimony,
etc.

Conclusion
Approval of the new IGA between Yavapai County and Gila County for
Restoration to Competency Services will run for a one-year term
from July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, with the option to renew for three
one-year periods upon mutual agreement of the Parties.  All terms and
conditions under Resolution No. 10-09-02 apply. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the IGA between Yavapai County and Gila
County for Restoration to Competency Services for a term effective July 1,
2018, and continuing in effect until June 30, 2019.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County
and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for one-year from
July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, with the option for three one-year
renewals upon mutual agreement of both counties.

Attachments
IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 07-01-18 to 06-30-21
YAVAPAI COUNTY-RESTORATION TO COMPETENCY
SERVICES-2015-2016
IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 07-01-14 to 06-30-15
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-14
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-13
IGA Ext'd to 6-30-12



IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 06-01-10 to 06-30-11
Resolution
Legal Explanation





















































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-5142   Consent Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

11-07-18 to 11-06-19 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072117-Janitorial Services for
Southern Gila County

Background Information
On September 5, 2017, the Board of Supervisors approved a request to
advertise Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 072117- Janitorial Service for
Southern Gila County. RFP No. 072117 was advertised in the September
13, 2017, and September 20, 2017, editions of the Arizona Silver Belt.
Responses received to RFP No. 072117 were opened in a public setting
on September 27, 2017; and, the Board awarded a contract to the lowest,
most responsible and qualified bidder which was Jani-Serv, Inc. The
contract annual amount was for $106,773.

Evaluation
The Contractor was asked to provide nighttime janitorial services for the
buildings per the scope of services outlined in RFP No. 072117.  All of the
buildings are in southern Gila County.  

The contract includes 115,841 sq. ft.; however, at the County’s sole
discretion, the area to be cleaned may be increased or decreased by
10,000 sq. ft. in the event buildings are added or lost without going out to
bid again. If the contract is renewed, the Contractor may request an
increase in price by no more than 2.5% per sq. ft. for the next year. This
process may be repeated each year the contract is renewed.  Billable work
includes carpet cleaning, and stripping and waxing of tile or vinyl flooring,



which Jani-Serv bid $0.18 sq. ft. for carpet cleaning and $0.32 sq. ft. for
stripping and waxing.

The original contract term for Contract No. 072117 was from November 7,
2017, to November 6, 2018, with the option to renew for three additional
one-year periods.

The contract amount with Jani-Serv, Inc. is $104,273, not including any
billable floor work.  The total amount for this contract with the current
square footage plus the estimated billable flooring costs should not exceed
$106,773.

Amendment No. 1 will serve to exercise the option to renew the contract
for one additional year, from November 7, 2018, to November 6, 2019.

Conclusion
County staff is pleased with the service provided by Jani-Serv, Inc. and
would like to extend the contract for another year.

Recommendation
The Finance Division Director and the Public Works Division Director
recommend renewing the contract with Jani-Serv, Inc. for one additional
year, whereby Jani-Serv, Inc. will continue to provide janitorial services
for various County facilities in southern Gila County. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072117-Janitorial Service
for Southern Gila County to extend the contract term with Jani-Serv, Inc.
from November 7, 2018, to November 6, 2019, at a cost not to exceed
$106,773.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 072117
Contract No. 072117 with Jani-Serv, Inc.

















































































   
ARF-5150   Consent Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-18 to 06-30-19 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 - Law
Offices of Steven Jones.

Background Information
On October 10, 2017, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Stephen Jones,
whereby Stephen Jones will provide legal services for indigent citizens as
appointed by the Superior Court in Gila County for the period
beginning November 1, 2017, to June 30, 2018. The original contract was
executed for a not to exceed without written authorization amount
of $40,650.

On July 10, 2017 the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to
Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of Stephen
Jones extending the term of the contract for one additional year, from
July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019.

Evaluation
The Gila County Superior Court would like to increase the original
contract amount by an additional $7,500 due to the increase in the
number of appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year.

Conclusion
Court Administration wishes to execute Amendment No. 2 to Professional



Court Administration wishes to execute Amendment No. 2 to Professional
Services Contract No. 090817 with Law Offices of Steven Jones to
increase the original contract amount by an additional $7,500 due to the
increase in the number of appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year.

Recommendation
The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County
recommends approving Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services
Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Stephen Jones to increase
the original contract amount by an additional $7,500 due to the increase
in the number of appointments to Attorney Jones this fiscal year.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract
No. 090817 between the Superior Court in Gila County and the Law
Offices of Stephen Jones to increase the contract amount by an additional
$7,500 for an amended contract amount of $48,150 for the remainder of
the contract term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2
Amendment No. 1 to professional Services Contract No. 090817
PSC-No.090817































   
ARF-5151   Consent Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2019 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

01-08-19 to 01-07-20 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618-Hayes
Enterprises Medical Director Services.

Background Information
On March 20, 2018, the Board of Supervisors approved Professional
Services Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises, so that Hayes
Enterprises can provide medical services to detainees in the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Jail Facility.

Evaluation
Contract No. 022618 expires on January 7, 2019. The contract allows for
three additional one-year renewal periods at an annual cost of $120,000;
therefore, staff recommends that the contract be renewed for one
additional year, from January 8, 2019 to January 7, 2020.

Conclusion
Staff feels it is in the best interest of the Gila County Sheriff's Office Jail
Facility to renew the contract with Hayes Enterprises for another 12
months for a monthly rate of $10,000 with a not to exceed amount of
$120,000 during the term of the contract.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of



It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to renew the contract with Hayes
Enterprises for one additional year, whereby Hayes Enterprises will
provide medical consulting and related services for the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Jail Facility.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Service Agreement
No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises to extend the term of the contract for
one additional year (January 8, 2019, to January 7, 2020) in a not to
exceed amount of $120,000 for the continued provision of jail
medical services for the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
Professional Service Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises















   
ARF-5155   Consent Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Tommie Martin, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Industrial Development Authority Board of
Directors-Reappointments

Background Information
The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila, Arizona (IDA)
is comprised of 9 members.  Each Supervisor recommends to the Board of
Supervisors the names of three members who they would like to represent
their specific Supervisorial District on the IDA Board, and the Board of
Supervisors then votes on the appointment(s).  The terms of office for IDA
members is six years.

Cliff Potts and James "Mac" Feezor represent Supervisorial District One,
Supervisor Martin's district, and their terms of office ended on July 6,
2017; however, they have continued to serve on the IDA Board.  Due to
an oversight, notification was not provided to the Board of Supervisors
that Mr. Potts and Mr. Feezor agreed to serve another term of office. 
Supervisor Martin also supports the reappointment of Mr. Potts and Mr.
Feezor. 

Evaluation
Notification has been provided by Sandy Palmer, Manager for the IDA,
that Mr. Potts and Mr. Feezor have agreed to serve another term of office
on the IDA Board.  Supervisor Martin also agrees with the reappointments
of  Mr. Potts and Mr. Feezor.

Conclusion
Supervisor Martin recommends Mr. Potts' and Mr. Feezor's reappointment
to the IDA Board of Directors retroactive to July 7, 2017, through
December 31, 2022.  A one-time adjustment is being made to Mr. Potts'
and Mr. Feezor's terms of office so that their terms will always end on
December 31st.



Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors reappoint Mr. Potts and
Mr. Feezor to the IDA Board of Directors.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint Cliff Potts and James "Mac" Feezor to the Board of
Directors of The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Gila,
Arizona, for another term of office retroactive from July 7, 2017,
to December 31, 2022 (with a one-time adjustment to the expiration date
of the terms).

Attachments
IDA Board of Directors-Updated List



GILA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(Proposed to the BOS on 10/30/18) 

 

Name of 
Member & 

Appointment 
Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Tim Grier D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

B (08/19/13) 
Scott Flake 

- 08/19/13-07/15/19 When term ends, need 
to adjust terms of office 
for all members so they 
are staggered and end 
on 12/31. 

Cliff Potts D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

C (10/30/18) 6 years 06/07/17-12/31/22 06/07/17-12/31/22* 

James Feezor D (Supv.  Dist. 1 
recommendation) 

C (10/30/18) 3 years, 11 months 06/07/17-12/31/22 06/07/17-12/31/22* 

Robert Pastor D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

A (07/16/13) - 07/16/13-07/15/19  

Stanley Gibson D (Supv.  Dist. 2 
recommendation) 

C (12/06/16) 2 years, 6 months 01/20/16-12/31/21 01/20/16-12/31/21* 

M. Lisa Brazil D (Supv. Dist. 2 
recommendation) 
 

B (01/24/17) 
Tim Humphrey 

- 01/24/17-12/31/19 01/24/17-12/31/19* 

Trena  
Grantham 

D (Supv. Dist. 3) C (12/06/16) 1 year, 8 months 01/01/17-12/31/22 01/01/17-12/31/22 

William A. (Bill) 
Bennett 

D (Supv.  Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

B (04/07/15) 
William Byrne 

- 04/07/15-12/31/19  

Fred Barcon D (Supv.  Dist. 3 
recommendation) 

C (07/16/13) 18 years  07/16/13-07/15/19  

                       * A one-time adjustment has been made to this term of office so that it will expire on December 31st. 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 7, 1972  
B. Regulated by A.R.S. §35-701 through 35-761, and the IDA’s Articles of Incorporation dated August 7, 1972. 
C. Governing Board members:  A nine member board which is appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  
D. Terms of Office:  Members are appointed to six-year terms of office.  The initial governing board was broken into 3 groups of 3 so that the terms of office would be two years apart for 

each group, per A.R.S. §35-705.    
 

2  Appointment Designation: 
A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 

         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 



D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-5160   Consent Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Community Development

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Board of Adjustment Reappointments.

Background Information
Bill Marshall and Mickie Nye serve on the Gila County Board of
Adjustment.  Their terms of office expire on December 31, 2018.  Through
the end of their current terms of office, Mr. Marshall and Mr. Nye will
have served 1 year and 7 months on this governing board.  Mr. Marshall
represents Supervisor Humphrey's district and Mr. Nye represents
Supervisor Cline's district.  Supervisors Humphrey and Cline would like
to reappoint Mr. Marshall and Mr. Nye, respectively, to the Board of
Adjustment for another term of office.  Mr. Marshall and Mr. Nye have
indicated their willingness to continue serving on this board.

Evaluation
It was recently discovered that in accordance with Arizona Revised
Statute § 11-816, the Board of Adjustment should only have 3 members
instead of 5 five members because the Board of Supervisors has chosen
to have one Board of Adjustment that serves the entire County and only
one member may represent a particular Supervisorial District.   At the
request of Supervisor Martin and Supervisor Humphrey, respectively, Don
Ascoli and Terry Otts have been notified that their appointments to the
Board of Adjustment will be rescinded by the Board of Supervisors in
order to meet the statutory requirement.

Supervisor Humphrey has asked Mr. Marshall to continue serving on the
Board of Adjustment to represent his district.  Supervisor Cline has asked
Mr. Nye to continue serving on the Board of Adjustment to represent his
district.  Mr. Marshall and Mr. Nye have indicated their willingness to be
reappointed by the Board of Supervisors to serve on the Board of
Adjustment for another term of office.  Per Arizona Revised Statute §
11-816, the term of office for this board is 4 years and the terms must



be staggered.  To assure there are staggered terms for the 3 remaining
members, a one-time adjustment is being made to Mr. Marshall's term so
both his and Mr. Nye's terms don't end on December 31, 2022.  Mr.
Marshall's term will be for 3 years and Mr. Nye's term will be for 4 years.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to rescind the appointments of Don
Ascoli and Terry Otts on the Gila County Board of Adjustment so that
there are only 3 members versus 5 as required by A.R.S. § 11-816; and
consider Supervisor Humphrey's recommendation to reappoint Bill
Marshall for the term beginning January 1, 2019 through December 31,
2021 (a one-time adjustment), and Supervisor Cline's recommendation
to reappoint Mickey Nye for the term beginning January 1, 2019, through
December 31, 2022.

Recommendation
Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director, is requesting
that the Board of Supervisors rescind the appointments of Don Ascoli and
Terry Otts on the Gila County Board of Adjustment; and
consider reappointing Bill Marshall and Mickey Nye for another term
of office.

Suggested Motion
Approval to rescind the appointments of Don Ascoli and Terry Otts from
the Gila County Board of Adjustment for the purpose of reducing the size
of the Board from 5 members to 3 members to be in compliance
with A.R.S. § 11-816; and reappoint Bill Marshall for the term beginning
January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021, and Mickey Nye for the
term beginning January 1, 2019, to December 31, 2022.

Attachments
Board of Adjustment-Updated List



 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

(Proposed to the BOS on 10-30-18) 

 

Name of Member & Appointment 
Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Don Ascoli (Resides in District 1) A-District 1 C (10/30/18) 13 years, 5 months 01/01/18-12/31/21 
(Rescinded appointment 
to reduce members 
from 5 to 3 per A.R.S. 
§11-816.) 

01/01/18-12/31/21 

Mary Lou Myers (Resides in District 1)  A-District 1 C (04/19/16) 3 years, 9 months 01/01/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Terry Otts (Resides in District 2) A-District 2 A (10/30/18) - 05/23/17-12/31/20 
(Rescinded appointment 
to reduce members 
from 5 to 3 per A.R.S. 
§11-816.) 

01/01/17-12/31/20 

Bill Marshall (Resides in District 2) A-District 2 C (10/30/18) 1 year, 7 months 01/01/19-12/31/21 01/01/19-12/31/21* 

Mickie Nye (Resides in District 3) A-District 3 C (10/30/18) 1 year, 7 months 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

 *A one-time adjustment is being made so that there are staggered terms on this board per statutory requirement. 
 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  September 8, 1959 
B. Per A.R.S. 11-816 – The Board of Supervisors (BOS) may establish one board of adjustment that has jurisdiction countywide and that is composed of 1 member who is a resident of each 

supervisorial district or one board of adjustment in each supervisorial district that has jurisdiction in that supervisorial district and that is composed of not less than 3 nor more than 5 
members, each of whom is a resident of that supervisorial district.  The members of each board shall be appointed for staggered terms of 4 years each. 

C. The Gila County Zoning Ordinance, Section 106.2 Powers and Duties, addresses the powers of the Board of Adjustment. 
D. The BOS has established 1 Board of Adjustment consisting of 5 members; however, the Board is composed of at least 1 member from each supervisorial district. 

 
2  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E.      Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5161   Consent Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Community Development

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission Reappointments.

Background Information
Bill Marshall and Terry Otts serve on the Gila County Planning and
Zoning Commission (Commission).  Their terms of office expire on
December 31, 2018.  Mr. Marshall and Mr. Otts represent Supervisor
Humphrey's district. 

Evaluation
Supervisor Humphrey has asked Mr. Marshall and Mr. Otts to continue
serving on the Commission, to which they agreed.  These reappointments
need to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval.

Conclusion
Per statutory requirement, the Board of Supervisors has the authority to
appoint members to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  The Board of
Supervisors needs to decide to reappoint Bill Marshall and Terry Otts so
they can continue serving on the Commission.

Recommendation
Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director, is requesting
that the Board of Supervisors reappoint Bill Marshall and  Terry Otts as
governing board members of the Gila County Planning and Zoning
Commission for the term beginning January 1, 2019, through December
31, 2022.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint Bill Marshall and Terry Otts as governing board
members of the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission for the
term beginning January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2022.



Attachments
P&Z Commission-Updated List



 

 

GILA COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

(Proposed to the BOS on 10/30/18) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Mary Lou Myers (resident of 
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 1 C (02/07/17) 4 years, 9 months 01/01/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Randy Slapnicka (resident of 
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 1 C (12/02/14) 4 years, 7 months 01/01/15-12/31/18 01/01/15-12/31/18 

VACANT (must reside in 
incorporated municipality) 

A-District 1 A - ?-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Bill Marshall (resident of 
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 2 C (10/30/18) 1 year, 8 months 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

Terry Otts (resident of 
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 2 C (10/30/18) 1 year, 10 months 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

Lori Brown (resident of  
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 2 A (03/07/17) 9 years, 7 months 
(resigned on 2/9/16) 

03/07/17-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

Mickie Nye (resident of  
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 3 C (10/30/18) 11 years, 11 months 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

Travis Holder (resident of   
incorporated municipality) 

A-District 3 C (10/30/18) 3 years, 5 months 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

VACANT (Must reside in 
unincorporated GC) 

A-District 3 A  ?-12/31/20 01/01/17-12/31/20 

 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  ? (On September 8, 1959, the BOS adopted Resolution No. 59-9-1 which adopted the initial Planning and Zoning Ordinance.) 
B. Per A.R.S. 11-802 – In counties with 3 supervisorial districts, the Commission shall consist of 9 members who shall be qualified electors of the county.  Three members shall be appointed 

from each supervisorial district by the supervisor from that district, and not more than 1 of the 3 may be a resident of an incorporated municipality.  The terms of the members of the 
Commission shall be for four years except for those initially appointed (to have staggered terms.)  Of the members initially appointed, 5 members shall be appointed for a 2-year term and 
4 members shall be appointed to a 4-year term; thereafter, each term shall be for 4 years. 
 

2  Appointment Designation: 
A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 

         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 



3  Appointment Type 
A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-5163   Consent Agenda Item     3. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Human Resources 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Personnel Commission Reappointment

Background Information
David Lagunas has served on the Gila County Personnel Commission
(Commission) for 5 years and 1 month through the end of his current
term of office, which ends on December 31, 2018.  He also serves as the
Chairman of the Commission.

Evaluation
Mr. Lagunas has agreed to serve another 4-year term of office on
the Commission for the term that will begin on January 1, 2019, through
December 31, 2022.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors is the statutory appointing authority that
appoints members to the Commission, so it is being requested that Mr.
Lagunas be reappointed to said Commission for four more years by the
Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
Shelley McPherson, Human Resources Director, is requesting that the
Board of Supervisors reappoint David Lagunas to the Commission.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint David Lagunas as a governing board member of the
Gila County Personnel Commission for the term beginning January 1,
2019, through December 31, 2022.

Attachments



Persopnel Commission-Updated List



 

 

GILA COUNTY PERSONNEL COMMISSION 

(Proposed to the BOS on 10/30/18) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

David Lagunas - Chairman B-Democrat C (10/30/18) 5 years, 1 month 01/01/19-12/31/22 01/01/19-12/31/22 

Teresa Williams B-Republican A (02/06/18) - 02/06/18-12/31/20 
 

01/01/17-12/31/20 

Jaime Escobedo (prior work 
experience in law 
enforcement) 
 

B-Democrat A (02/02/16) - 02/02/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

Michael Ferreira  B-Democrat A (02/06/18) - 02/06/18-12/31/20 
 

01/01/17-12/31/20 

Lori Andrade B-Independent C (02/02/16) 1 year, 3 months 02/02/16-12/31/19 01/01/16-12/31/19 

 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  On October 22, 1979, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 78-10-8 establishing a Personnel Policy which included establishing a Personnel Commission at 
that same time.   

B. The Personnel Commission was also established in accordance with A.R.S. §11-353 (A) which states, “The commission shall consist of five members, each of whom shall hold office for a 
term of four years and until his successor is appointed and qualified.  Of the members first appointed, two shall serve for a two-year term two for a three-year term and one shall serve a 
four-year term, and such members shall determine by lot the length of their terms.   

C. A.R.S. §11-353 (B) states “Members of the commission shall be selected from among the qualified electors of the county.  No more than three of such members shall be from the same 
political party. 

D. Gila County Policy No. BOS-HRS-625 - Personnel Commission states “At least one member shall have prior work experience in the law enforcement or probation field.”  
2  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

3  Appointment Type 
A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5164   Consent Agenda Item     3. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Northern Gila County Range Commission Member Reappointment.

Background Information
On April 3, 2018, the Board of Supervisors appointed Charles Thompson
to the Northern Gila County Range Commission (Commission) through
December 31, 2018.  The reason Mr. Thompson was appointed for such a
short term was to correct the terms of office on the Commission so that all
terms are staggered and end on different years. 

Evaluation
 Mr. Thompson has agreed to continue serving on this Commission.

Conclusion
This Commission was established by the Board of Supervisors; therefore,
any changes to the governing board members must be made by the Board
of Supervisors. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors reappoint Mr. Thompson
to the Commission to serve a 3-year term of office.

Suggested Motion
Approval to reappoint Charles Thompson as a governing board member of
the Northern Gila County Range Commission for the term beginning
January 1, 2019, through December 31, 2021.

Attachments
Northern Gila County Range Commission-Updated List



 

 

NORTHERN GILA COUNTY RANGE COMMISSION 

(Proposed to the BOS on 10/30/18) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Forrest Switzer B C (04/03/18) 17 years (approx.) 
(initially appointed 
on 12/14/99) 

04/03/18-12/31/20 01/01/18-12/31/20 

David (Smokey) Slaughter B C (04/03/18) 9 years (approx.) 
(initially appointed 
on 3/31/09) 

04/03/18-12/31/19 01/01/17-12/31/19 

Charles Thompson B A (10/30/18) 8 months 01/01/19 -12/31/21 
 

01/01/19-12/31/21 

 
1  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  April 6, 1981, by Gila County Resolution No. 81-4-1. 
B. Purpose:  To manage a parcel of property owned by the U.S. Forest Service and of which Gila County has been issued a Special Use Permit so that the County may construct, operate and 

maintain a public target range including range facilities for rifle, pistol, shotgun and archery; and day use recreation facilities. 
C. The Commission is comprised of 3 members, who are appointed by the Board of Supervisors to serve 3-year terms of office.  The initial Commission was established so that each 

member’s term of office is one year apart. 
 

2  Appointment Designation: 
A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 

         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 
C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



   
ARF-5146   Consent Agenda Item     3. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 302-57-037D

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
15-05-05 which outlines the policy and procedures for the sale of land
held by the State of Arizona under tax deed.  The procedures allow the
Clerk of the Board to sell these parcels over the counter for the total lien
amount.  A separate $15 fee is required to be paid by the purchaser in
order to record the Quit Claim Deed.  The procedures also state that a
consent agenda action item will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors
on a regular meeting agenda to obtain authorization from the Board for
the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 

Assessor's tax parcel number 302-57-037D was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 1998 with a total lien amount of $593.46.  It did not sell at the
Board of Supervisors' annual tax sale/auction that was held on November
10, 1998 but was placed on the "not for sale" list due to this being used
as a roadway.

Evaluation
On October 11, 2018, the Clerk of the Board sold the subject parcel to the
Town of Star Valley for the lien amount.  Said payment was
deposited with the Gila County Treasurer on the same day. A separate
$15 payment was submitted to record the Quit Claim Deed. 
This property is a sliver of land used as a primitive roadway.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to authorize the Chairman's signature on
the Quit Claim Deed for the sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
302-57-037D.  Once the deed has been finalized and recorded,
the property will go back on the County's tax rolls.



Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
authorize the Chairman's signature on a Quit Claim Deed to finalize the
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number 302-57-037D to the Town of Star
Valley.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed for the
Clerk of the Board's over-the-counter sale of Assessor's tax parcel
number 302-57-037D to the Town of Star Valley.

Attachments
302-57-037D QCD
302-57-037D Infomation



QCD-302-57-037D  Page 1 of 3 
 

When recorded return to:     
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 
 

 GILA COUNTY QUIT-CLAIM DEED 
                                                                                                                                                   

THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED, made this day 30th day of October 2018, between the State of Arizona, by 
and through the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Grantor, and Town of Star Valley, Grantee.  

 
Address of Grantee:  3675 E. Highway 260, Star Valley, Arizona 85541 
 
 RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the real property hereinafter described was conveyed to the State of Arizona by 

Treasurer's Deed for the non-payment of taxes, which taxes had been legally assessed against, and 
became a lien upon, said property according to law; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, on behalf of the State of Arizona, advertised and 
offered said property for sale to the highest bidder for cash in accordance with A.R.S. §42-18302 and 42-
18303; and 

  
WHEREAS, on the 11th day of October 2018, Grantee did purchase said property for the sum of five 

hundred ninety-three dollars and forty-six cents ($593.46); 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, Grantor does hereby quit-claim to Grantee, 
the following described real property situated in the County of Gila, State of Arizona. 
 

 Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number:  302-57-037D 
  
 Legal Description:   
 
 SEE EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 Exempt from Affidavit of Property Value pursuant to A.R.S. §11-1134 (A) (3) 

 
Grantor:              Attest: 

  
 
_________________________________    ______________________________ 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman          Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors        Gila County Board of Supervisors 

             
 
 



QCD-302-57-037D  Page 2 of 3 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
     ) SS      ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF GILA    )       

  
 
Before me, Melissa Henderson, a Notary Public in and for the County of Gila, State of Arizona, on this  30th 
 day of October 2018, personally appeared Tommie C. Martin, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Gila 
County, Arizona, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public 

      
                 My Commission Expires:               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



QCD-302-57-037D  Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

THAT PORTION OF H.E.S. NO. 418, IN TOWNSHIP 11 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER 
BASE AND MERIDIAN, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT CORNER NO. 8 OF SAID H.E.S. NO. 418; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 1°24’35” EAST, ALONG THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 8 AND 9, 135.97 FEET; 
 
THENCE WEST PARALLEL TO THE LINE BETWEEN CORNERS 7 AND 8, 369.76 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 1°30’41” WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THAT PARCEL DESCRIBED IN INSTRUMENT 
RECORDED IN DOCKET 428, PAGE 880, RECORDS OF GILA COUNTY ARIZONA, 352.31 FEET; 
 
THENCE NORTH 69°06’ WEST, 14.00 FEET; 
 
THENCE NORTH 1°01’ EAST, 250.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 



















   
ARF-5148   Consent Agenda Item     3. L.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/30/2018  
Reporting
Period:

September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018, and October 16,
2018

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018, and October 16, 2018, Board of
Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018, and October 16,
2018, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
09-25-18 Meeting Notes
10-02-18 Meeting Notes
10-16-18 Meeting Notes



Page 1 of 5 

 

  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  September 25, 2018 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Member        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Vice-Chairman        Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman; Woody Cline, Vice-Chairman; 
Tommie C. Martin, Member (via ITV); W. James Menlove, County Manager; 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian; Jefferson R. Dalton, 
Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; and Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
of the Board. 

  
ABSENT:  Charles Shire, Deputy County Attorney Senior-Civil; and Melissa 
Henderson, Deputy Clerk 

 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Chairman Humphrey called the work session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date 
in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room and he asked Eric Mariscal to lead 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of the National 

Joint Powers Association (Sourcewell) Contract No. 032515-CAT to 
finance a new 2018 model 120M2 AWD Caterpillar Motor Grader (serial 
number M9H00559) from Empire Machinery using Caterpillar Financial 

Services Corporation. This is a payment schedule of eight payments 
ending in September 2025, under a Governmental Agreement for special 

financing in the amount of $299,395.38.  
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that this will be the 

first time the County has entered into a lease-purchase agreement to purchase 
CAT heavy equipment.  The benefit is that after the lease term of 7 years ends, 
the County may purchase the equipment at a cost of $90,240, refinance for 

another 2 years or return the equipment.  The County will be trading in an 
older CAT piece of equipment toward this lease-purchase.  Mr. Sanders added 



Page 2 of 5 

 

that there is a sense of urgency for Board approval because the finance rates 
will go up at the end of the month, so he requested the Board’s approval.  Vice-

Chairman Cline expressed a concern that the County could be penalized 
should the equipment hours exceed 7,000 hours.  Mr. Sanders replied that he 

does not expect the hours to exceed 7,000; however, he told the Board he 
would contact CAT representatives to find out about that penalty and report 
back to the Board.  Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-

Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously approved the use of the National Joint 
Powers Association (Sourcewell) Contract No. 032515-CAT to finance a new 
2018 model 120M2 AWD Caterpillar Motor Grader (serial number M9H00559) 

from Empire Machinery using Caterpillar Financial Services Corporation. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-09-04 
accepting a pass-through grant on behalf of the Hellsgate Fire District 
from the Gila River Indian Community in the amount of $48,025 for 

critical technology upgrades for the Hellsgate Fire District.  
 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, Librarian, advised that a proposition 
was enacted into law several years ago whereby tribes that operate gambling 
casinos were given authority to set up their own grant processes.  She advised 

that tribal entities recognize that other entities besides counties, cities and 
towns provide critical services.  If such an entity makes the final round of the 
grant application process, a resolution is required to be submitted by a county, 

city or town.  Hellsgate Fire District is requesting the Board to adopt the 
proposed resolution whereby the County agrees to be a pass-through entity if 

funds are granted.  Ms. Sanders advised that this would be the first time that 
Gila County would be a pass-through entity; however, it has been done in other 
Arizona counties.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by 

Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 18-09-04.  
(A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
C.  Information/Discussion to consider the future use of County-owned 

property located off Highway 260 in Payson.   
 
James Menlove, County Manager, advised that the Board has been involved in 

a discussion for quite some time about locating additional courtroom space in 
Payson to conduct jury trials.  He asked Mr. Sanders to provide some 

information on this property that is owned by the County.  Mr. Sanders advised 
that years ago the Gila County Provisional Community College District deeded 
this property to the County.  There is approximately 21 acres of land available 

for use.  Situated in this land, the Town of Payson has one acre of land.  Mr. 
Sanders advised that the County has had preliminary discussions with the 
Town of Payson staff and the Town has indicated its willingness to work with 

the County should the County wish to develop this land.  The Board, Mr. 
Menlove and Mr. Sanders entered into a discussion on the possible uses of the 



Page 3 of 5 

 

land.  At the end of the discussion, Mr. Menlove indicated that he had enough 
information from the Board members to proceed further.  He will be talking 

with court officials, Town of Payson staff and Town of Star Valley staff.  He will 
provide the Board with a formal report at a future Board meeting.   

 
D.  Information/Discussion to consider entering into Intergovernmental 
Agreements with other governmental agencies for the purchase of fuel. 

 
Mr. Menlove advised that there are some entities in Gila County that purchase 
fuel from the County; however, he does not believe current agreements are in 

place with any of the entities.  He stated that the purpose of this agenda item is 
to ask for Board direction on whether to continue selling to these entities and 

other governmental entities.  Mr. Sanders commented that, to his knowledge, 
the County entered into Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs) with the Tonto 
Basin School District, Young School District and Pleasant Valley Fire 

Department to sell fuel to those entities.  The IGA with the Tonto Basin School 
District (TBSD) has expired; however, Mr. Sanders advised that the TBSD 

continues to purchase fuel from the County and they also continue to park 
their school bus at the County’s maintenance yard.  There is an IGA in place 
with the Pleasant Valley Fire District although Mr. Sanders is unsure if the IGA 

has an expiration date.  Mr. Sanders advised that he has found a letter 
between the County and the Young School District that talks about an IGA for 
the purchase of fuel from the County; however, he has not found any IGA on 

file.  He further advised that the Tonto Basin Fire District (TBFD) is requesting 
to purchase fuel from the County.  He added that there was an IGA in place at 

one time with the TBFD; however, the TBFD discontinued purchasing fuel from 
the County when that IGA expired.  The Board entered into a discussion with 
Mr. Sanders on the amount of fuel purchased annually from each of the 

entities.  Mr. Sanders asked for guidance from the Board on whether to 
continue to provide to those entities currently being provided fuel by the 
County until a new agreement can be put into place with each of them and 

whether to consider other requests such as has been received from the TBFD.  
Chairman Humphrey expressed a concern that the County would be negatively 

affecting other local businesses that sell fuel.  Mr. Menlove asked Mr. Sanders 
if the County must pay HURF (Highway User Revenue Fund) taxes on the fuel 
that is sold to these entities.  Mr. Sanders replied that he does not know that 

answer, but he will find out the answer to this question and other questions 
and report back to the Board.  Mr. Menlove suggested that the County continue 

selling fuel to the Tonto Basin School District, Young School District and 
Pleasant Valley Fire Department until the Board receives a comprehensive 
report on how these fuel sales affect the County, and not sell to any new 

entities at this time to which the Board agreed.  
 
E.  Information/Discussion and introduction of a potential employee 

performance appraisal software system for Gila County.  
 



Page 4 of 5 

 

Ms. Sanders advised that Shelley McPherson, Human Resources Director, was 
unable to present this agenda item because she has federal jury duty for the 

next couple of weeks.  Ms. Sanders proceeded to provide a PowerPoint 
presentation of a potential online employee performance appraisal system for 

Gila County.  She stated that this presentation is the introduction of the 
proposed system and a comprehensive review of the system will soon be 
presented to the Board of Supervisors.  Of the three companies that were 

contacted by the Human Resources Department, PerformancePro was the 
chosen system.  The system has the ability to: allow the employee to do a self-
appraisal to enhance conversation with their supervisor; run reports such as 

turnover and payroll increase reports for all or by office/department; review 
and update job descriptions yearly (with approval); route the finished appraisal 

for all approval signatures; and update the process departmentally and or 
countywide as needed by Human Resources.  Ms. Sanders added that if the 
Board of Supervisors chooses PerformancePro, it will:  set up all employees in 

the system along with all job descriptions; design the appraisal to the County’s 
specifications; train 3 Human Resources employees for administration; train 25 

or more supervisors and record the session for all others; and train 25 
employees and record the session for all others for use at employee orientation. 
Ms. Sanders answered some questions from the Board members.  Mr. Menlove 

commented that he is in favor of the PerformancePro system because it has a 
lot of flexibility.  At 11:22 a.m., Mr. Menlove announced that he would be 
leaving the meeting for another engagement.  Ms. Sanders concluded the 

presentation by stating that this system costs approximately $25,000 for the 
first year and about half that amount annually for maintenance costs.  The 

Board thanked Ms. Sanders for the presentation. 
 
Item 3 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 

No comments were offered by the public. 
 
Item 4 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 



Page 5 of 5 

 

Each Supervisor and the Deputy County Manager presented a summary of 
current events.  

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Humphrey adjourned the meeting at 11:43 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 11 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 2, 2018 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY                                              MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE   By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tim R. Humphrey; Chairman; Woody Cline, Vice-Chairman; 
Tommie C. Martin, Member (via ITV); W. James Menlove, County Manager (via 

ITV); Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian; Jefferson R. 
Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the Board. 

 
ABSENT:  Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney Senior-Civil 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 

Chairman Humphrey called the regular session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date 
in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jacque Sanders led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Jeff Dalton delivered the invocation. 

 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A.  Convene a public hearing to hear from citizens on the FFY 2018 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application for CDBG 

Regional Account funding in the amount of $165,517 that will be used for 
3 proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation projects in Gila 
County; authorize the submittal of the Application to the State of Arizona 

Department of Housing; and adopt related Resolution Nos. 18-09-02 and 
18-09-03.   

 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, advised that the Board 
of Supervisors held a public hearing on September 11th regarding the CDBG 

Application and no public comments were provided.  After the initial notice of 
public hearing was advertised in the newspaper, it was discovered that the 
notice contained the incorrect fiscal year; therefore, another public hearing had 

to be scheduled and a notice of that hearing had to be advertised in the 
newspaper.  Chairman Humphrey opened the public hearing; there were no 



Page 2 of 11 

 

comments, so he closed the public hearing and asked for a Board motion.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the 

Board unanimously authorized the submittal of the Application to the State of 
Arizona Department of Housing; and adopted related Resolution Nos. 18-09-02 

and 18-09-03. (Copies of the Resolutions are permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve revised Exhibit A 

of Resolution No. 18-08-01 which is the FY 2018-2019 Tax Levies and Tax 
Rate Table to reflect the corrected tax rate for the Pine Creek Canyon 

Domestic Water Improvement District.   
 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, stated that the Pine Creek Canyon Domestic 

Water Improvement District informed the County that the tax rate set for the 
District by the County was incorrect.  The correct tax rate is 2.7497.  Ms. 

Springer advised that the correct tax rate for the District is stated on revised 
Exhibit A.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved revised Exhibit A of Resolution No. 

18-08-01.  (A copy of the Resolution with revised Exhibit A and Exhibit B 
is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a 
Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous Surplus Material in the Payson 

Roundup newspaper on October 9, 2018.   
 
Ms. Springer advised that a live auction will be held at the Russell Gulch 

Landfill on November 17, 2018, to sell surplus County equipment and she 
requested authorization to publish the Notice of Public Auction in the Payson 
Roundup, the County’s official newspaper for 2018.  Upon motion by 

Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously   
authorized the publication of a Notice of Public Auction for Miscellaneous 

Surplus Material. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 

Agreement No. 071918 with the Town of Hayden-Building and Zoning 
Review and Inspection Services on an as needed basis for the period of 

one calendar year after its execution, with up to three additional one-year 
extensions by mutual agreement of the parties.   
 

Scott Buzan, Community Development Division Director, advised that this 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Town of Hayden has the same 
terms and scope of work as an IGA with the Town of Winkelman that was 

approved by the Board approximately six months ago.  Mr. Buzan stated that 
the Community Development staff has the expertise to perform the services 



Page 3 of 11 

 

outlined in the IGA.  He added that the services will be provided on an as-
needed basis.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor 

Martin, the Board unanimously approved IGA No. 071918. 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the final Marketing Plan 
and Strategy for the Tourism and Marketing Initiative for Gila County.   
 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, Librarian, advised that the draft 
Marketing Plan and Strategy for the Tourism and Marketing Initiative for Gila 
County was presented to the Board on June 26, 2018.  Since that time, two 

stakeholder meetings were held in September.  The primary changes between 
the draft document and the final document are contained on pages 43-44, 

which is the updated list for communities, and some typographical errors were 
corrected.  Ms. Sanders advised that Cameron Davis, a consultant on this 
project, is in Payson to answer any questions of the Board.  Each Supervisor 

stated that they have received positive feedback from their constituents on this 
initiative and were pleased to see it move forward.  The Board thanked Ms. 

Sanders and Mr. Davis for their efforts.  Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously approved the final 
Marketing Plan and Strategy for the Tourism and Marketing Initiative for Gila 

County.   
 
E.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 

convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)  
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission and 

subsequent acceptance of a State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila 
County Library District to the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public 
Records, Library Development Division, for fiscal year 2019 in the amount 

of $23,000 designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 2018, through 
June 30, 2019.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District 
Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors.)  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 
Board unanimously voted to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors to address 

this agenda item.  Elaine Votruba, Public Services Librarian, stated that this is 
a reoccurring, non-competitive grant.  The funds will be used to provide 

training, travel, equipment upgrades, collection development and special 
projects throughout the Library District.  Each of the 8 libraries within the Gila 
County Library District will receive $2,000 to use at their discretion and the 

remaining $7,000 will be used by the District to aid the libraries with special 
projects.  Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Cline, the Board unanimously authorized the submission and subsequent 

acceptance of a State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila County Library 
District to the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records, Library 



Page 4 of 11 

 

Development Division, for fiscal year 2019 in the amount of $23,000 
designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019.  

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 
Board unanimously voted to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board 

of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizens' Petition 

to begin the process to establish Quail Run from Russell Road east to 
5821 E. Quail Run as a primitive road.  
 

Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that this road has been 
in existence prior to 1990.  Recent legislative changes regarding the guidelines 

for establishing primitive roads allows this road to become a primitive road.  
Chairman Humphrey commented that this road is within his Supervisorial 
District.  He added that in the past there have been some issues between the 

residents living along this road. As this process moves forward to the point that 
the homeowners will need to sign easements, Chairman Humphrey asked 

Jefferson Dalton, Deputy County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief, if a letter could 
accompany each easement to advise the residents of the County’s efforts to 
establish the road as a primitive road and to hopefully bring some peace 

amongst the residents.  Mr. Dalton replied that there would not be a legal issue 
in sending a letter advising the residents that the law now allows the County to 
establish this road as a primitive road and to inform them that the County 

knows of no other remedy other than to establish the road as a primitive road. 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 

Board unanimously accepted the Citizens' Petition to begin the process to 
establish Quail Run from Russell Road east to 5821 E. Quail Run as a 
primitive road.  

 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-10-01 
accepting Naeglin Crossing in Young, Arizona (a/k/a Pleasant Valley) to be 

established as a primitive road and authorizing the Chairman of the Board 
of Supervisors to sign the Primitive Road Easement.  

 
Mr. Sanders advised that this requested Board action is the last step necessary 
to establish Naeglin Crossing as a primitive road, which allows the County to 

maintain the road in accordance with the guidelines for primitive roads.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board 

unanimously adopted Resolution No. 18-10-01 and authorized the Chairman of 
the Board of Supervisors to sign the Primitive Road Easement.  (A copy of the 
Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 080118 for the purchase of two (2) new belly dump 

trailers to replace trailer numbers C-48T and C-60T; award to the lowest, 



Page 5 of 11 

 

responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the award contract.  

 
Mr. Sanders stated that belly dump trailers are used by the County more in the 

northern region of Gila County.  The purchase of the two new belly dump 
trailers will replace trailers that are worn out.  Two bids were received, and Mr. 
Sanders recommended awarding a contract to Midco Sales, Inc., which 

submitted the lowest bid in the amount of $67,472.52.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously 
awarded a contract to Midco Sales, Inc. in the amount of $67,472.52 in 

response to Invitation for Bids No. 080118, and authorized the Chairman’s 
signature on the award contract. 

 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted 
for Invitation for Bids No. 080818-Gisela Road Improvements Project; 

award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; 
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract.  

 
Mr. Sanders stated that this roadway improvement project is for a portion of 
Gisela Road.  The proposed project would improve approximately 0.63 miles of 

the existing roadway west of the summit area.  The proposed work consists of 
pulverizing the existing pavement surface and base material where applicable 
followed by the installation of new aggregate base material and asphaltic 

concrete pavement.  Six bids were received, and Mr. Sanders recommended 
awarding a bid to AZ Western Contracting, Inc., which submitted the lowest bid 

in the amount of $309,056.35.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, 
seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract to 
AZ Western Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $309,056.35, and authorized 

the Chairman’s signature on the award contract.   
 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 

Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of FY 2019 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG 

No. 2019-004 between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona 
Attorney General's Office in the amount of $23,302 to cover the existing 

salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate, with no 
cash match funds required, for the period July 1, 2018, through June 30, 
2019.  

 
B.  Acknowledgment of the July and August 2018 monthly activity 
reports submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 



Page 6 of 11 

 

C.  Acknowledgment of the August 2018 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.  

 
D.  Acknowledgment of the August 2018 monthly activity report 

submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the August 2018 monthly activity report 

submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
F.  Acknowledgement of the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office 

monthly activity report for August 2018.  
 

G.  Acknowledgement of the August 2018 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office  
 

H.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
September 4, 2018, September 11, 2018, September 18, 2018, and 

September 25, 2018.  
 
SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 

 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Janie Bennett – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 

08/31/18 – General Fund – DOH 10/07/02 
2. Jacob Martin – County Attorney’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 08/01/18 – 

Deferred Prosecution Program Fund – DOH 08/28/17 
3. Kristin Dotts – Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – 08/27/18 – General 
Fund – DOH 01/30/17 

 
NEW HIRES: 
4. David Shaw – County Attorney’s Office – Diversion Officer – 09/10/18 – 

Diversion Program CA Fund – Replacing Kenneth Wortman 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5. Mariah Campagna – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Specialist – 08/30/18 – Community Health Grant Fund 

6. Elliana Cabrera – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/17/18 – General 
Fund  

7. Angel Hooke – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 09/12/18 – General 
Fund 
 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8. Maryn Belling – Finance – From Accountant Senior – To Budget Manager – 
09/10/18 – General Fund – FY19 Position  

 
 



Page 7 of 11 

 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
9. Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Analyst – 

09/03/18 – Various Funds – Change in fund code 
10. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative 

Assistant – 09/03/18 – From Health Service Fund – To General Fund – Change 
in fund code 
11. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – EM/PHEP Manager – 

09/03/18 – Various Funds – Change in fund code 
12. Chrystelle Crick – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 09/11/18 – 
General Fund – Extending probationary period an additional six months 

13. Omar Gonzalez – Superior Court – Calendar Administration – 09/03/18 – 
General Fund – Obtained State Interpreting Certification 

14. Travis Todd – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/03/18 – General Fund – 
Change in overtime fund 
15. Keith Conway – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 05/04/18 – General Fund 

– Change in overtime fund 
16. Elliana Cabrera – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 05/28/18 – General 

Fund – Change in overtime fund 
17. Michael Hill – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 09/01/18 – General 
Fund – Change in overtime fund 

18. Clayton Kimbrough – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/01/18 – General 
Fund – Change in overtime fund 
19. Colleen Lacy – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer – 09/17/18 – From 

State Aid Enhancement Fund – To Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile Intensive 
Probation Supervision (.50) Funds – Change in fund code 

20. Martina Burnam – Probation – From Probation Aide – To Probation Case 
Manager – 09/03/18 – General Fund – Reclassification 
21. Debra Gildersleeve – Probation – From Probation Aide – To Probation Case 

Manager – 09/03/18 – General Fund – Reclassification 
22. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/03/18 – General 
Fund – Start of special assignment 

23. Matthew Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/16/18 – General 
Fund – End of special assignment 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
24. County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – Vacated by Janie 

Bennett 
25. Public Fiduciary – Administrative Clerk – Vacated by Kristin Dotts 

 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/07/18 – General 
Fund – DOH 04/14/14 

2. Keturah McCleave – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 
09/04/18 – Public Works Fund – DOH 09/04/18 



Page 8 of 11 

 

 
NEW HIRES: 

3. Jessica Fox – Public Works – Scalehouse Attendant – 09/10/18 – Recycling 
and Landfill Management Fund – Replacing Venessa Taylor 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4. Sherry Grice – Board of Supervisors – Management Associate – 08/20/18 – 

General Fund 
5. Larry Dooly – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 
09/15/18 – Facilities Management Fund 

6. Jace Johnson – Public Works – Building Maintenance Supervisor – 
09/18/18 – Facilities Management Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7. Nicole Weaver – Finance – From Accounting Associate – To Accounting 

Analyst – 09/10/18 – General Fund – Replacing Maryn Belling 
 

SEPTEMBER 18, 2018 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Sharon Winters – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Manager – 
12/21/18 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 02/05/96 
2. Mark Brooks – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 09/12/18 

– Public Works Fund – DOH 02/10/15 
3. Crystal Singleton – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/10/18 – General 

Fund – DOH 09/03/18 
4. Juan Alvarez – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/20/18 – General 
Fund – DOH 10/24/16 

5. Rahil Abou Saleh – Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health 
Specialist – 09/21/18 - Health Service (.70)/Public Health Emergency 
Preparation (.30) Funds – DOH 08/19/13 

6. Kiley Sturgill – Public Works – Temporary Landfill Laborer – 09/22/18 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 08/27/18 

7. Christopher Jenkins – Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Equipment 
Operator Senior – 09/22/18 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 
02/12/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 

8. Gretchen McAnerny – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 
10/01/18 – General Fund – Replacing Janie Bennett 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
9. Edward Reyes – Probation – Deputy Probation IV – 09/25/18 – General Fund 
10. Mathew Gonzales – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 09/25/18 – General 

(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees (.50) Funds  



Page 9 of 11 

 

11. Joshua Burch – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 09/25/18 – General 
Fund  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

12. Jessica Cruz – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/10/18 – General Fund 
– End of special assignment 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
13. Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Manager – Vacated by Sharon 
Winters 

14. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – Vacated by Mark 
Brooks 

15. Health and Emergency Services – Environmental Health Specialist – 
Vacated by Rachel Abou Saleh 
16. Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Equipment Operator Senior – 

Vacated by Christopher Jenkins 
 

SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Kathy Canizales – Sheriff’s Office – Medical Assistant – 09/18/18 – General 
Fund – DOH 06/11/07 
 

NEW HIRES: 
2. Deanna Termain – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 10/01/18 – General 

Fund – Replacing Christopher Mathews 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

3. Sharon Listiak – Health and Emergency Services – PHEP Coordinator – 
09/25/18 – Public Health Emergency Preparedness Fund 
 

OTHER ACTIONS: 
4. Carissa Rogers – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 10/02/18 – General 

Fund – Extending probationary period to 10/25/18 
5. Jay Valenzuela – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/24/18 – From Sheriff 
BLESF Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – To General Fund – Change in fund 

code 
6. Thor Nudson – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/24/18 – From Sheriff 

BLESF Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – To General Fund – Change in fund 
code 
7. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/24/18 – From General 

Fund – To Sheriff BLESF Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – Change in fund 
code 
8. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/19/18 – Sheriff BLESF 

Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – Special assignment 



Page 10 of 11 

 

9. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 12/30/18 – Sheriff BLESF 
Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – End of special assignment 

10. Phillip Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/24/18 – From General 
Fund – To Sheriff BLESF Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – Change in fund 

code 
11. Phillip Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/16/18 – Sheriff BLESF 
Program (.99)/General (.01) Funds – End of special assignment 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
12. Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk Senior – Vacated by 

Sarah Chavez 
13. Recorder’s Office – Voter Registration Coordinator – Vacated by Amy 

O’Connor 
14. Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – Vacated by Kassandra Trevino 
 

I.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager beginning 08-01-18 through 08-31-18.  

 
J.  Approval of the September 18, 2018, Board of Supervisors' meeting 
minutes.  

  
Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A through 4J.  

 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Each Board member presented a summary of current events. Mr. Menlove did 
not have any events to report. 

 



Page 11 of 11 

 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Humphrey adjourned the meeting 10:42 a.m. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 7 

 

 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 16, 2018 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY                                              MARIAN SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE   By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                               Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tim R. Humphrey; Chairman; Woody Cline, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV); Tommie C. Martin, Member (via ITV); W. James Menlove, County 

Manager; Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian; Charles 
Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney Senior-Civil (via ITV); Marian Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk of the Board. 

 
ABSENT:  Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau 
Chief 

 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 

 
Chairman Humphrey called the regular session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date 
in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Adam Shepard led the Pledge of 

Allegiance and Pastor Duane Howard of the River of Life Church of God in 
Globe delivered the invocation. 
 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A.  Public recognition of one employee for October's "Spotlight on 
Employees" Program, as follows: Gerald "Jerry" Irish.  
 

Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior, read aloud a letter of 
nomination that was submitted by Freddie Rios of Arizona Water Company for 

Mr. Irish to receive an employee recognition for the County’s Spotlight on 
Employees Program.  Mr. Irish works in the Public Works Division and has 
been employed with Gila County for three years.  An award was presented by 

Ms. Raymond to Mr. Irish.  Each Board member congratulated Mr. Irish on 
receiving the award and thanked him for his service to Gila County. 
 

 
 



Page 2 of 7 

 

Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt an Order designating polling 
places within each election precinct and appointing poll workers and 

election board workers for the purpose of conducting the General Election 
to be held on November 6, 2018.  
 

Jacque Sanders, Deputy County Manager, District Librarian, presented this 
agenda item on behalf of Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, who was unable to 
attend the meeting.  She asked the Board to adopt the Order.  Upon motion 

Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 
adopted the Order designating polling places within each election precinct and 

appointing poll workers and election board workers as listed on Attachments A-
C of the Order.  
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the release of $18,677 
remaining funds by Pioneer Title Agency for the Elk Rim Project per 

section 5.2 of the escrow agreement.   
 
Mary Springer, Finance Director, advised that the Board of Supervisors 

approved a Final Plat for the proposed Elk Rim Subdivision (Elk Rim Project) 
on February 6, 2018.  She explained that approving the release of $18,677 
remaining funds will fulfill all terms of the escrow agreement.  Upon motion by 

Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously 
released $18,677 remaining funds by Pioneer Title Agency for the Elk Rim 

Project per section 5.2 of the escrow agreement.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-10-

02 creating a Census 2020 Complete Count Committee for Gila County.   
 
Ms. Sanders introduced Emily Verdugo, who is the Census Outreach 

Partnership Specialist.  Ms. Verdugo explained that she covers southern 
Arizona except for Maricopa County.  She proceeded to provide a PowerPoint 

presentation of the process to conduct the 2020 Census.  Ms. Verdugo advised 
that the U.S. Constitution mandates that a census is to be taken every ten 
years.  She reviewed the timeline for the census, as follows:  Beginning on 

March 3, 2020, any person may provide their census information on line or by 
phone.  April 1, 2020, is Census Day.  Local people will be hired to help take 

the census.  Beginning May 2020, census workers will visit the residences of 
those individuals who did not self-respond on line or by phone.  By August 
2020, the census will be completed and on December 31, 2020, the census will 

be sent to the President of the United States.  Ms. Sanders advised that the 
Board is being asked to form a Census 2020 Complete Count Committee for 
Gila County.  The Board will be presented with the names of the Committee 

members as a consent agenda item on a future Board meeting agenda.  Each 
Board member thanked Ms. Verdugo for the presentation.  Upon motion by 



Page 3 of 7 

 

Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution No. 18-10-02.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 

on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 080218-1 for the purchase of one new 1ton, full 
size 4x4 regular cab, SRW, cab and chassis, and utility service body with 

60" cab to axle dimension for assignment to the Engineering/Signs 
Department; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and 
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract.  

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, stated that earlier this summer 

the Board authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 080218-
1.  He advised that the new vehicle mentioned in the IFB will be replacing a 
unit that is older and has high mileage.  The Engineering/Signs Department 

will be relinquishing vehicle number C-41, a 2008 one-ton flatbed ford pickup 
truck that has 145,466 miles and it will be sold at an auction.  Mr. Sanders 

stated that there were five bid responses.  Of those bids, McSpadden Ford was 
the low bidder with a bid in the amount of $52,464.66.  He recommended that 
the Board award a contract to McSpadden Ford.  Upon motion by Vice-

Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously 
awarded a contract to McSpadden Ford for the purchase of one vehicle (as 
stated above) in the amount of $52,464.66 in response to IFB No. 080218-1. 

 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 18-10-03 

which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. One to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I) between Gila 
County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation, for an 

additional $22,360 for the scoping, design and project development 
administration cost associated with the Golden Hill Sidewalk Project 
between Globe and Miami, AZ.  

 
Mr. Sanders advised that on September 6, 2016, the Board adopted Resolution 

No. 16-09-03 authorizing the approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA/JPA 16-0005917-I), for a sidewalk project along Golden Hill Road between 
Globe and Miami, AZ. Upon approval of that agreement, ADOT and County 

staff realized that additional funds were needed for design costs. To continue 
advancing the project, funds allocated for Project Management and Design 

Review (PMDR) were moved to design costs. This amendment will provide for 
full funding for the remaining cost of design in the amount of $17,360. It will 
also replace the funding used from the PMDR section, now known as ADOT 

Project Development Administration Cost (PDA) in the amount of $5,000.00. In 
total this amendment if approved will cost Gila County Public Works $22,360. 
Funding will come from the County’s half cent transportation excise tax.  Mr. 

Sanders requested that the incorrect amount of $22,300 that is stated on the 
background section of the agenda review form be corrected to read $22,360, to 



Page 4 of 7 

 

which the Chairman affirmed that correction would be made.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman Cline, the Board unanimously 

adopted Resolution No. 18-10-03.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 091718 - Sub-grantee for Public Health 

Preparedness.  
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Division Director, 

presented this agenda item.  Gila County is seeking proposals from 
organization(s) for the provision of operational and programmatic public health 

emergency preparedness consultation services for planning deliverables 
required by the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS).  The awardee of 
the contract will assist with the coordination and collaboration efforts of the 

Gila County Health and Emergency Management Division in meeting the 
federal grant obligations related to planning, operating, exercising and 

developing emergency preparedness plans and partnership agreements needed 
to operationalize preparedness plans.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, 
seconded by Supervisor Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 

advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 091718. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Grant 

Contract No. ADHS16-106556 to accept a grant award extension from the 
Arizona Health Zone-SNAP-Ed Local Implementation Services for the 

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance and Education Program in the amount 
of $200,638 per year for an additional 2-year period which, if accepted, 
will enable the Health and Emergency Management Division to continue 

to implement a policy, systems and environmental change focus to be 
used for population health initiatives in the areas of food systems, active 
living, school health, and early childhood nutrition education.   

 
Mr. O’Driscoll advised that Amendment No. 1 to this contract will provide 

additional funds to continue the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance and 
Education Program which includes farmers markets, early childhood 
education, etc.  Chairman Humphrey stated that he received a public 

participation form submitted by Lori Smith, who requested to speak about this 
item.  Ms. Smith commented that until today she had not heard of this 

program and she asked how the money has been used for the past three years.  
She stated that if there have been accomplishments, the County “should toot 
its own horn.”  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that he would prepare and submit a 

report to the County Manager for dissemination to the Board of the program’s 
successes.  Each Board member agreed with Ms. Smith that the County should 
do a better job of sharing information on the many good things being done by 

the County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Martin, seconded by Vice-Chairman 



Page 5 of 7 

 

Cline, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to Grant Contract 
No. ADHS16-106556. 

 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Adoption of an Order to cancel the November 6, 2018, governing board 
elections for the fire districts, water and waste water improvement 

districts, sanitary districts, vocational technology districts, school 
districts, and provisional college districts; and appoint governing board 

members to those districts as listed on Attachments A through D of 
the Order. (A copy of the Order is on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

B.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Governor's Office of 
Highway Safety Contract No. 2019-405d-015 to accept grant funds in the 

amount of $25,000 which will be used by the Sheriff's Office for overtime 
and ERE to enhance DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement.  
 

C.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Governor's Office of 
Highway Safety Contract No. 2019-PTS-017 to accept grant funds in the 
amount of $10,000 which will be used by the Sheriff's Office for overtime 

and ERE for Speed Enforcement.  
 

D.  Approval of an Amendment to the FY 2019 Drug, Gang, and Violent 
Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No. DC-19-004) between Gila 
County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in order to comply 

with the provisions imposed by the Department of Justice related to 
notification and access requirements for the Department of Homeland 
Security.  

 
E.  Approval of an Amendment to the FY 2019 Drug, Gang and Crime 

Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No. DC-19-023) between Gila County and 
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $59,495 for 
the period of July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, of which said funds provide 

a significant portion of the funding for a full-time prosecutor.  
 

F.  Acknowledgment of amended -Contract IFB No. 080118-Purchase Two 
(2) New Belly Dump Trailers that was previously approved by the Board of 
Supervisors on October 2, 2018, to reflect the correct contract amount of 

$67,526.52.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager beginning September 1, 2018, through 
September 30, 2018.  



Page 6 of 7 

 

 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 

period of September 1, 2018, through September 30, 2018.  
 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 292118 through 292195, 292197 through 292203, 292205 through 

292233, 292235 through 292274, 292276 through 292334, 292336 through 

292604, 292606 through 292744, 292746 through 292764, and 292766 

through 292779, totaling $3,919,498.13 for the period 09-01-18 through 09-

30-18.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants are permanently attached 

to these minutes.) 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Cline, seconded by Supervisor Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A-4H. 

 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
Sarah Bernstein stated that she was recently appointed to the Canyon Water 

Improvement District Board of Directors and it was her understanding that she 
needed to be sworn into office at this meeting.  Chairman Humphrey deferred 
to Charles Shire, Deputy Gila County Attorney Senior-Civil.  Mr. Shire advised 

that Ms. Bernstein could be sworn in and that someone would talk to her after 
the Board meeting. 
 

Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 



Page 7 of 7 

 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented a summary of current 

events.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 

Chairman Humphrey adjourned the meeting 10:57 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Tim R. Humphrey, Chairman 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 


	Agenda
	Request to allow Helm, Livesay & Worthington, Ltd. to represent Gila County in the matter of Continental Energy Cases No. TX 2018-000106
	Att1_Continental Energy retainer agreement
	Att2_CONTINENTAL ENERGY exhibit A to legal representation agreement
	Future use of the former Gila County Juvenile Detention Center located at 1425 E South Street, in Globe.
	Att1_Detention Center-Google Images
	Att2_A.R.S. _8-305
	Att3_A.R.S. _8-306
	Att4_A.R.S. _48-4005
	Adopt Resolution No. 18-10-04 accepting a Quit Claim Deed (QCD) from the Maurine, Kay, and Lila Family Trust for Pine Creek Drive
	Att1_Resolution No. 18-10-04 with Exhibit B
	18-10-04-Pine Creek Drive_sfs
	RESOLUTION NO. 18-10-04
	Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

	Exhibit B

	Att2_QCD for Pine Creek Road
	Award Contract No. 080318-Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Education Support Services to Pinnacle Prevention
	Att1_Contract No. 080318
	Att2_Quote Tabulation Form
	Att3_As Read Bid Results
	Att4_Pinnacle Peak-Sealed Bid
	Constable's Ethics, Standards, and Training Board FY 2019 Equipment Grant Application and Award
	Att1_Grant Contract No. CNA19-202
	Att2_FY19 Equipment Grant Application
	Intergovernmental Agreement between Yavapai County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services
	Att1_IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 07-01-18 to 06-30-21
	Att2_YAVAPAI COUNTY-RESTORATION TO COMPETENCY SERVICES-2015-2016
	Att3_IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 07-01-14 to 06-30-15
	Att4_IGA Ext'd to 6-30-14
	Att5_IGA Ext'd to 6-30-13
	Att6_IGA Ext'd to 6-30-12
	Att7_IGA for Restoration to Competency Services 06-01-10 to 06-30-11
	Att8_Resolution
	Att9_Legal Explanation
	Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 072117-Janitorial Services for Southern Gila County
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 072117
	Att2_Contract No. 072117 with Jani-Serv, Inc.
	Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. 090817 with the Law Offices of Steven Jones for the Superior Court
	Att1_Amendment No. 2
	Att2_Amendment No. 1 to professional Services Contract No. 090817
	Att3_PSC-No.090817
	Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618-Hayes Enterprises Medical Director Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 022618
	Att2_Professional Service Agreement No. 022618 with Hayes Enterprises
	Reappointments to the Gila County Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors
	Att1_IDA Board of Directors-Updated List
	Gila County Board of Adjustment Reappointments
	Att1_Board of Adjustment-Updated List
	Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission Reappointments
	Att1_PandZ Commission-Updated List
	Personnel Commission Reappointment
	Att1_Persopnel Commission-Updated List
	Northern Gila County Range Commission Member Reappointment
	Att1_Northern Gila County Range Commission-Updated List
	Quit Claim Deed for Sale of Assessor's Parcel No. 302-57-037D
	Att1_302-57-037D QCD
	Att2_302-57-037D Infomation
	September 25, 2018, October 2, 2018, and October 16, 2018
	Att1_09-25-18 Meeting Notes
	Att2_10-02-18 Meeting Notes
	Att3_10-16-18 Meeting Notes

